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[REDACTED]

[REDACTED]

[REDACTED]

[REDACTED]

                                                                                                RE:  MV00000539
                                                                                            [REDACTED]
                                                                                            [REDACTED]


                                                                                                 [REDACTED]
                                                                                            Dismissed

Dear [REDACTED]:

The Commanding Officer, Coast Guard Hearing Office, Arlington, Virginia, has forwarded the file in Civil Penalty Case MV00000539, which includes your appeal on behalf of the owners of the [REDACTED].  The appeal is from the action of the Hearing Officer in assessing a $4,600.00 penalty for the following violations:

	Law/Regulation
	Nature of Violation
	Assessed Penalty

	49 CFR 172.504
	Failure to comply with general placarding requirements.
	$2,100.00  

	49 CFR 172.201
	Failure to properly provide required information for hazardous materials on shipping papers.  
	$2,500.00


The alleged violations occurred on February 1, 2000, when U.S. Customs Officials requested a Coast Guard inspection of container [REDACTED] at the [REDACTED], Philadelphia, Pa.  Investigators from Coast Guard Marine Safety Office Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, inspected the container (shipped by [REDACTED] (hereinafter, [REDACTED])) and found that it contained three diesel powered welding machines, two of which had full fuel tanks.  

On appeal, you deny the violations of 49 CFR 172.504 and 49 CFR 172.201.  With respect to the alleged violation of 49 CFR 172.504, you contend that the regulation is inapplicable to the instant case because the regulation “provides an exemption for freight containers moved in domestic transportation and this cargo was moved in domestic transportation in a freight container.”  You further contend that “[REDACTED] was not afforded the opportunity to specifically address the charges against it, and deprived of its minimal due process rights.”  You further contend that [REDACTED] did not possess the requisite scienter to be found guilty of the alleged violation.  With regard to the violation of 49 CFR 172.201, you contend that “the charge should be dropped” and add that “no cargo was manifested because [REDACTED] was unaware that there might have been hazardous cargo in this shipment.”  You conclude that, if [REDACTED]’s argument regarding the alleged violation of 49 CFR 172.504 is accepted, “there was no violation of this rule [49 CFR 172.201] because there would have been no hazardous cargo manifest.”  Your appeal is granted for the reasons described below.

You first assert that the penalty assessed for [REDACTED]’s alleged violation of 49 CFR 172.504 should be dismissed because “this statute is inapplicable to domestic transportation per 49 CFR 172.504(f).”  49 CFR 172.504(f)(9) states that “[f]or domestic transportation, a Class 9 placard is not required.”  However, as you also noted, the regulation does require that “bulk packaging” be marked with the appropriate identification number on a Class 9 placard.  It was this “exception to the exception” that the Hearing Officer relied upon in assessing the penalty.    

The Bill of Lading effective for this shipment indicates that [REDACTED] shipped the container from San Juan, Puerto Rico to Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.  49 CFR 171.8 defines domestic transportation as “transportation between places within the United States other than through a foreign country.”  The word “state” is defined as “a state of the United States, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, the Virgin Islands, American Samoa, Guam, or any other territory or possession of the United States designated by the Secretary.”  The shipment from Puerto Rico to Philadelphia is, therefore,  “domestic transportation” and the exemption from Class 9 placarding requirements will apply as long as the shipment is not a “bulk packaging.”  As you have noted, 49 CFR 171.8 defines “bulk packaging” as “a packaging other than a vessel or a barge, including a transport vehicle or freight container, in which hazardous materials are loaded with no intermediate form of containment.”  It is evident that, in determining that [REDACTED] was in violation of 49 CFR 172.504, the Hearing Officer concluded that the shipment was a “bulk packaging.”  In fact, in concluding that [REDACTED] had violated the regulation, the Hearing Officer echoed the “bulk packaging” language contained in 49 CFR 172.504(f)(9) when he stated that “[a]lthough a Class 9 placard is not required, the package should have been marked with the appropriate identification number displayed on a Class 9 placard, an orange panel or a white-square-on-point display.” (emphasis added).  I agree with your assertion that the welding machine fuel tanks “should be considered an ‘intermediate form of containment’ under the definition contained in 49 CFR 171.8.  As such, I disagree with the decision of the Hearing Officer that this shipment was a “bulk packaging.”  Therefore, I will dismiss the violation and resultant penalty.  Because I have dismissed the violation on this basis, I will not address the other arguments that you presented on appeal.        

While I do not see similar defenses for the remaining violation, I will dismiss the violation and penalty assessed for the violation of 49 CFR 172.201.  The record indicates that MSO 

Philadelphia has requested that this case be dropped and I will not enforce a penalty where the initiating office does not deem it appropriate.  Therefore, in accordance with the regulations governing civil penalty proceedings, 33 CFR 1.07, this decision constitutes final agency action.  


                                                    Sincerely,


                                                       //S//


david j. kantor

Deputy Chief,

Office of Maritime and International Law 

By direction of the Commandant

Copy:  Commanding Officer, U.S. Coast Guard Hearing Office 
            Commander, Finance Center 
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